KENSINGTON POLICE PROTECTION
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

AGENDA

A meeting of the Finance Committee of the Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District will be held
Wednesday June 15, 2016, at 6: 00 P.M., at the Community Center, 59 Arlington Avenue, Kensington, California.

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 6:00 P.M.

2. Public Comments- Members of the public may address the Committee on any issues not listed on the agenda that
are within the purview of the Committee. Comments on matters that are listed on the agenda may be made at the
time the Committee is considering each item. Each speaker is allowed a maximum of five (5) minutes per Board
Policy 5030.41.

3. Approval of the Finance Committee Minutes.
a. Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting of May 4, 2016. Page 2

4. The Committee will receive a report from the General Manager and consider recommending approval to the Board of
Directors a contract with Lamorena & Chang to perform independent auditing services for the District. P-17

5. The Committee will review and discuss a proposal to develop a Budget Reserve Policy for the District.
Informational Item. P- 23

6. The Committee will review and discuss a proposal, presented by Committee member Rob Firmin, to include
forecasting of scenarios and uncertainties, using leading software and other methods, as an integral part of District

budgeting and financial analysis. The Committee may take action to recommend to the Board of Directors to use
this model in the future.

ADJOURNMENT

General Information-Accessible Public Meetings

NOTE: UPON REQUEST THE KENSINGTON POLICE PROTECTION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WILL PROVIDE WRITTEN AGENDA MATERIALS IN APPROPRIATE ALTERNATIVE FORMATS, OR DISABILITY-
RELATED MODIFICATION OR DISABILITIES TO PARTICIPATE IN PUBLIC MEETINGS. PLEASE SEND A
WRITTEN REQUEST, INCLUDING YOUR NAME, MAILING ADDRESS,PHONE NUMBER AND A BRIEF
DESCRIPTION OF THE REQUESTED MATERIALS AND PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE FORMAT OR AUXILARY
AID OR SERVICE AT LEAST 2 DAYS BEFORE THE MEETING. REQUESTS SHOULD BE SENT TO:

Interim General Manager Kevin. E. Hart, Kensington Police Protection & Community Services District, 217 Arlington Ave,
Kensington, CA 94707. POSTED: Public Safety Building-Colusa Food-Library-Arlington Kiosk- and at
www . kensingtoncalitornia.ore.

Complete agenda packets are available at the Public Safety Building and the Library.

All public records that relate to an open session item of a meeting of the Kensington Police Protection & Community Services
District that are distributed to a majority of the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, excluding records that are exempt
from disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act, will be available for inspection at the District offices, 217

Arlington Ave, Kensington, CA 94707 at the same time that those records are distributed or made available to a majority of
the Board.

1

—£109380.1

\

217 Arlington Avenue ¢ Kensington, California 94707-1401 ¢ (510) 526-4141



KPPCSD Finance Committee Meeting Minutes for 5/4/16

A Special Meeting of the Finance Committee of the Kensington Police Protection and
Community Services District was held Wednesday, May 4, 2016, at 6:00 P.M., at the
Community Center, 59 Arlington Avenue, Main Room, Kensington, California.

ATTENDEES

Committee Members Speakers/Presenters
Len Welsh, President Deborah Russell, CPA
Chuck Toombs, Director Bharat Trehan
Paul Haxo A. Stevens Delk
Derek Suring David Spath
Karl Kruger
Jim Watt
Paula Black

Simon Brafman

Elena Caruthers

Rob Firmin

Linda Lipscomb

Pat McLaughlin

Staff Members

Kevin Hart, Interim General Manager/Chief of Police (IGM/COP)

Lynn Wolter, District Administrator

Press

President Len Welsh called the meeting to order at 6:03 PM and took roll call. President Len Welsh,
Director Chuck Toombs, Derek Suring, Karl Kruger, Paul Haxo, Simon Brafman, Jim Watt, Paula Black,
Rob Firmin, Elena Caruthers, Pat McLaughlin, Linda Lipscomb, IGM/COP Hart, and District
Administrator Wolter were present. Paul Dorroh and Gloria Morrison were absent.

President Welsh apologized for the short notice given for the meeting that had been initially scheduled for
the prior week and for any confusion that had arisen by rescheduling the meeting for this night.

President Welsh said he wanted to begin with comments about a misunderstanding with respect to two
items in the budget: license plate readers (ALPRs) and body cameras, in Accounts 965 and 966. He said
these appeared in the budget just to note that there was a good chance that the Board would get to them as
agenda items in fiscal year 2016-17. He said there would be no decision to purchase them until there had
been a thorough discussion. He said he understood that some people had civil rights concerns and concerns
about police having the capacity to use both these tools. He said there needed to be both a policy and a
fiscal discussion about these items and noted that the fiscal impact would be about $100,000 for both

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 1




devices. He said most police agencies were moving toward using these devices and that Kensington was
surrounded by agencies, most of which had adopted these. He said that, as the Committee moved toward
taking a vote on whether to recommend the budget to the Board, if Committee members thought the items
should be removed from the budget, they would be removed. He said he had accomplished the task of
letting the community know that the Board likely would be discussing the items within the coming vyear.

President Welsh also said he wanted to address the press release IGM/COP Hart had put out a few weeks
earlier about a police policy regarding ALPRs. He said the policy had been introduced not because the
District was purchasing or using ALPRs: Rather, it was because the Kensington Police Department had
access to it — Richmond already had ALPRs; and, under certain circumstances, Kensington could access
this information. He noted that AB935 had taken effect on January 1% of this year and that this bill had
done two things:
e Ifan agency adopted this technology and utilized it directly, then the agency must develop a police
policy and procedure for it, and the agency must do so with community input.
e  Another part of the bill referred to Kensington’s situation, which is that the agency doesn’t have
the device, but it does have access to information generated by devices in Richmond. Thus,
Kensington is required to have a policy about how it would use that information, if at all.

President Welsh noted that Kensington’s policy dealt with the aspects associated with the second point. He
said some people had complained about the policy because there hadn’t been public comment on it. He
explained that the reason this had been done was because the bill had taken effect on January 1* and that
the District had not been aware of the second provision contained in the bill until there had been a closer
reading of it. He said that, the District would have been subject to sanction if it hadn’t had a policy that
defined how it would use the information to which it could have access. He concluded by saying that
IGM/COP Hart had developed this policy to avoid possible liability and by saying the policy could be
amended.

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

Paula Black said she wanted Agenda Item 6 to precede Agenda ltem 5 because the reserve policy
recommendation, which had been developed by the Reserve Policy Subcommittee, could have an impact on
the budget. President Welsh responded that he thought that, at this meeting, the Finance Committee would
only be hearing and having discussions about suggestions that had been developed by the Subcommittee.
Director Toombs said that, in the interest of disclosure, he had sent a copy of what the Subcommittee had
developed to Adam Benson and that Mr. Benson had provided some comments.

Director Toombs asked if there had been a line for reserves in the proposed budget. President Welsh
responded that there was a calculation for this and that the amount in the proposed budget was $1.7 million.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

A. Stevens Delk said she wouldn’t be able to stay for the meeting but she wanted to comment on ALPRs,
She said she had looked at the 3M brochure, which IGM/COP Hart had placed in the Board’s April Board
Packet. She noted that most of the advertised applications for the devices were for fixed-position cameras,
which would be great for traffic problems, toll booths, parking management, HOV lane violations, and for
surveillance for a community’s entry and exit streets. She said that they could also have applications for
stolen vehicles, wanted criminals, Amber Alerts and BOLOs (be on the lookout). She said hers was a voice
of dissent because she thought $54,000 was a lot for enhanced BOLO patrol.

President Welsh said he would reverse the order of Items 5 and 6. IGM/COP Hart clarified that the
discussion would be about a recommendation not about approving a policy.

President Welsh addressed Bharat Trehan about concerns Mr. Trehan had expressed the previous day about
ALPRs. He reiterated that their cost had been included in the budget only as a placeholder until the Board

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 2



went to and received input from the community - likely later in the year. Mr. Trehan said he wanted to
make sure that people were aware of what the ACLU’s position was. Deborah Russell responded that this
was the IGM/COP’s budget and that he brought it to the Finance Committee; therefore, it should reflect
what he thought was needed. She said that, then, the Finance Committee could make recommendations to
the Board. She said that placing body cameras and ALPRs in the budget didn’t violate any policy or
overstep. President Welsh added that the Finance Committee would decide whether or not to recommend
including these two items.

Mabry Benson said that she had concerns that, if the items appeared in the budget, it would convey that it
would be okay to spend the money. She added that, if the items were to remain in the budget, they should
be footnoted. Linda Lipscomb responded that the Committee would only be making recommendations. It
was the Board that would adopt the budget.

David Spath said that, if there was any possibility that body cameras and ALPRs might be implemented,
they should be in the budget and that the Board would be making the decision.

Director Toombs said he had been surprised to have seen this as a line item without there having been any
prior discussion. He clarified that the Board had not adopted theses and that, therefore, there should not be

any associated number in the budget.

Paul Haxo raised a point of order and said the Committee should table this item and get back to the agenda.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Linda Lipscomb said she had a correction for page 6. She said that the word “proscribed” should be
“prescribed.”

MOTION: Karl Kruger moved, and Paula Black seconded, that the minutes of April 16, 2016 be
approved, as amended.
Motion passed unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS

The Committee received a report regarding the draft Independent Auditor’s Financial Report for
the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015. The Committee reviewed and considered voting to
recommend the Kensington Police Protection and Community Services Board of Directors
approve the report.

1GM/COP Hart thanked Deborah Russell for her work on the audit. He noted her many painstaking phone
calls and emails to balance the numbers and to correct information, her trip to Sacramento to work with the
auditors, and the complexity of working with this auditor. He noted that the auditor would attend the
Board’s May meeting to present the audit.

President Welsh noted that a lot of information had been posted on the website and that if, in the future,
people wanted hard copies of Committee packets, they should let staff know.

Debbie Russell, CPA provided an executive summary of the audit. She said the good news and most
important thing was that this was a clean audit. She said the most important change had been the adoption
of a new GASB reporting requirement — GASB 68. She said that this had been incorporated into the
financials and into the footnotes. She began with the MD&A (Management Discussion and Analysis) and
asked if anyone had any questions. Director Toombs responded that he wanted to know where the District’s
net position had been reported. Ms. Russell reported it was shown on Page 3 and that the net position for

KPPCSD Finance Commiitee Minutes — May 4, 2016 3




June 30, 2014 had been $1,331,584 and for June 30, 2015 was ($1,249,721). She explained that the
difference was due to the new implementation of GASB 68, which required incorporating the deferred
pension liability into the balance sheet. Ms. Russell noted that this newly incorporated amount was $2.6
million, that the calculation was included on pages 8, 30 and 31 of the report, and that this affected the
District’s net position. She clarified that the liability had always existed but that this was the first year it
had been incorporated into the financial reports. She said that the auditor would be able to answer specific
questions Committee members had about GASB 68.

Ms. Russell said that, other than the new GASB information, other aspects of the reports looked familiar.
She reported that the General Fund ended the year with a net $143,000.

Director Toombs asked what the $127,838 of Capital Project Committed Funds was. Ms. Russell responded
this was the amount that had been set aside for automobiles. She explained that the money had been set
aside many years ago for the purpose of replacing vehicles at the rate of one per year. Pat McLaughlin said
the money had always been meant for the purchase of cars, as a rotating fleet. Ms. Russell discussed the
other restricted funds, noting that there was a negative balance in the Bay View account because money
had been spent out of that account during prior years to cover legal bills and that this amount would be
reimbursed to the General Fund out of Bay View revenue during the current fiscal year.

Karl Kruger asked where the District was, with respect to vehicles. IGM/COP Hart responded that the
number of vehicles had stayed the same but that one of the vehicles, which had 95,000 miles on it and
wasn’t safe to drive, had been retired and one new vehicle had been purchased, pursuant to the budget.
IGM/COP Hart said he was evaluating the department’s two motorcycles to determine whether it would be
more cost effective to repair them or to replace one of them.

Mr. Kruger asked about the COPS funding, which had been used to pay for the tenth officer and whether
the District would continue to receive it if there were fewer than ten officers. Ms. Russell said that the
District had been receiving more than the $100.000 grant minimum and that the District was not required to
have a tenth officer to receive the funds. Director Toombs said that the Board had taken the position that
the funds should be used for the additional tenth officer about seven years earlier but that this wasn’t a
requirement; the requirement was that funds had to be used for police-related expenses. Linda Lipscomb
said that the COPS grant money comes from Vehicle Licensing Fees and that the District may not include
COPS money in its budgets: It is booked only upon receipt. Ms. Russell and IGM/COP Hart said that the
amount reported for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 was $130,000.

Paul Haxo asked that, on page 5, the term “New Park” be replaced with the phrase “The funds are restricted
for maintenance of that part of the park purchased with the proceeds of the 1994 Limited Obligation
Improvement Bonds.” He noted this would be a terminology change to reflect the fact that this part of the
park wasn’t really new anymore.

Mr. Haxo asked that, on page 8, there be additional information provided about unrestricted funds. Ms,
Russell responded that she would provide a footnote. He also suggested that, with respect to the lease
commitment discussion on pages 23 and 24, it should be made clear that the District’s rent was $1.00 in the
fiscal year ending 6/30/15 and that fiscal year 2016-17 would be the last year of this rent agreement.

With respect to the OPEB calculation, Mr. Haxo asked that the word “years™ follow those numbers that
corresponded with years and asked that Ms. Russell confirm that the number of years, 25 and 30, were
correctly listed.

Ms. Russell noted that the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and
Actual had appeared in the body of the audit in prior years and that the auditor had changed this to appear
as a supplemental document at the end of the audit.

Ms. Russell said that KPPCSD didn’t operate in a manner typical of government because it didn’t rush to

spend money before the end of the year. She said that, when the KPPCSD spent money, it spent with a
purpose in mind, and she noted that there was a great deal of scrutiny.

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 4



Director Toombs said that, as shown on page 33, the District had ended the year with a surplus of $142,988
and that this was $411,684 better than had been budgeted. Ms, Russell responded that the actual surplus,
which appeared on page 10, was $143,257 and that this amount took Capital Projects into account.

Rob Firmin suggested that expenses shouldn’t be aggregated, as they had been on page 9. He said these
expenses should be shown with the same account numbers that appear in the District’s budget. Ms. Russell
responded that the District could probably order anything, that this was the auditor’s document, and that her
involvement was to ensure that the numbers were accurate. Ms. Lipscomb asked if this would be a
supplemental document, noting that an auditor doesn’t subscribe to each individual client’s bookkeeping
practices: Instead, he or she uses accounting standards. Ms. Russell said this information could be obtained
from the District’s bookkeeping system, and she could prepare such an income statement and balance sheet
in about five minutes time. Mr. Firmin said this would be helpful for the modeling he would like done. Mr.
Firmin asked in what format Ms. Russell received the audit. She responded that she received it as a PDF.
Mr. Firmin said he would like to receive a copy of this as a searchable PDF. Ms. Russell and IGM/COP
Hart responded that they would work to provide this.

Linda Lipscomb said that she hadn’t seen anything that dealt with the effect of PEPRA because there had
not been any PEPRA employees during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 but that the District would
begin to see that in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. IGM/COP Hart confirmed this.

Jim Watt said there was different information about the District’s unrestricted net position on different
pages, and he asked for clarification. Ms. Russell responded that she appreciated the scrutiny provided by
others said she would research why the amounts didn’t match. Mr. Watt asked if it would be possible to get
a detail of the $240,000 legal expenses. President Welsh responded that the District had still been involved
in the writ. Ms. Russell said that, with respect to the 2016-17 budget work she had been doing with
IGM/COP Hart, she had been trying to get detail for the legal expenses. She said she had wanted to
ascertain where the District had been over budget — was it management, was it Board members — but had
learned that the Public Law Group didn’t track information in this manner. Instead, she said PLG billed by
cases or areas of work. She said she was continuing to work to obtain this information.

Linda Lipscomb said Ms. Russell had done a good job.

MOTION: Paul Haxo moved, and Linda Lipscomb seconded, that the Finance Committee
recommend that the Board accept the audit, as proposed to be amended.

Motion passed unanimously.

The Committee received a report from the subcommittee on the development of a Budget Reserve
Policy. The Committee considered whether to take action to vote on recommendations from the
subcommittee to the Board of Directors.

Rob Firmin provided an overview. He reported the subcommittee had consisted of five people: Paula
Black, Karl Kruger, Gloria Morrison, Jim Watt, and himself. He said the group had met twice and had
exchanged a number of emails and, in so doing, had come to a consensus on what they would recommend.
He said that the subcommittee had looked at other communities and that there had been a lot of variability
among them. He said the group had developed a policy that would fit Kensington’s particular
circumstances. He said the recommendation was that the District maintain a contingency reserve for its
operating expenditures of no less than $500,000 or 16% of the total annual revenues each year, whichever
was greater. He quoted the following proposed language: “The reserve may only be utilized in the event of
a severe economic downturn or a natural disaster and only after all reasonable expenditure cuts have been
implemented in order to meet that reserve policy.” He said the Community Center was something about
which the community had to do something. He said the recommended policy, with respect to that building,
was that the District had a committed park buildings replacement reserve and that this would have a new

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 5




name of Community Center Upgrade. He said that the funds currently shown were $206,977 and that these
funds should be augmented by $150,000 per year for each of the next two years and that the funds be
restricted for use on the Community Center only. He recommended that there be another fund, a general
capital building fund, and that the amount to be allocated would be based upon 4% of the annual revenues
of the County Levy Tax. Jim Watt said that the 4% would equal about $60,000.

Jim Watt said there were three things going on: a general reserve fund of $500,000 or 16%; the Community
Center; and potential future obligations for other buildings. Mr. Watt said, with respect to the Community
Center, the Park Buildings Committee, on which he sits, had received a seismic report that indicated this
work would cost approximately $350,000 in hard costs plus approximately 25% in soft costs plus an
amount for contingency. He said this would total approximately $440,000. He said the Park Buildings
Committee had also received an ADA report, which indicated that those costs would be approximately
$148,000 in hard costs plus 35% of soft costs. Thus, he said, this total would be approximately $200,000.
He said that the ADA and seismic work, combined, would total approximately $640,000. He said the
District currently had approximately $200,000 designated for the Community Center plus $158,000 of WW
funds — noting that, after processing fees, this amount would be approximately $150,000. He said the
difference between this total and the amount needed for the ADA and seismic work would be a shortfall of
approximately $300,000. He said this was where the $150,000 per year, for two years, had come from. Mr.
Watt added that the Kensington Community Council (KCC) had previously indicated that it would
contribute $250,000. But, he said, there were strings attached to this, and the KCC had indicated that it
would not pay for things for which it thought the District pay: Rather, it would pay for upgrades. Mr, Watt
said that the seismic work did not cover changes to the west wall of the Community Center and that
changing this wall, from cinder blocks to glass, would cost approximately $100,000 is hard and soft costs,
combined, according to architect Bart Jones. He said that the KCC would like to see the kitchen upgraded
to be a commercial kitchen and that, according to architect Deborah Lane, this would cost $100,000. He
noted that some of the ADA work would occur in the kitchen. Mr. Watt said that the ADA and seismic
estimates did not include the cost of any painting, improvement to the floor tiles, the lighting, or cosmetic
improvements to the bathrooms.

Director Toombs asked Mr. Watt to confirm that the suggested $150,000 per year, for two years, was meant
to make up the $300,000 shortfall. Mr. Watt confirmed this.

Mr. Watt said he wanted also to address the Community having its head in the sand, with respect to the
costs of the Fire Station. He said there could be costs to the District associated with upgrades to the Fire
Station. He said the Annex might be needed, on an interim basis, to house the Police Department during
construction. He said that, when Muller Caulfield had done its study prior to Measure L, it had indicated
that $35,000 would be needed to take care of necessary repairs to the Annex in order to use it as an interim
place while the Community Center was being rebuilt. He noted that this bare-bones work would have called
for portable bathrooms. He said that, based on what he had heard at Fire District meeting, there could be a
period of one or two years when the police department would have to move out of the Public Safety
Building and that it might need to move into the Annex. President Welsh said that he had spoken with Mr.
Dommer about the options that the Fire District Board was considering and that there would be some
community forums to inform residents and to obtain feedback. President Welsh said that one option would
be to demolish the building, buying an adjacent residential property and demolishing it, and then building a
new building on the enlarged footprint. He said that this option would require the Fire District to take out a
loan and would leave the KPPCSD without a home for about two years, or perhaps longer. He said that a
new building would require new permits, and the cost of these was unknown. He said that another option
was to make further seismic upgrades to the current building. He added that he had not heard concerns
expressed about the foundation of the Community Center, along the lines of the concerns being expressed
about the Public Safety Building. He noted that both buildings were close to the fault. Mr. Watt responded
that the seismic engineer had looked at this, with respect to the Community Center. Mr. Watt said the
difference between the Community Center and the Public Safety Building was that the Public Safety
Building was an essential services building and, thus, needed to be brought up to a standard about 50%
higher than the standard that would be sought for the Community Center. President Welsh asked for
confirmation that the standard being sought for the Community Center was one that, following a serious
earthquake, would enable people to escape but might not leave the building useable; whereas, the standards

KPPCSD Finance Commitiee Minutes — May 4, 2016 6



sought for the Public Safety Building would have it remain useable. Ms. Russell noted that another issue
for the Fire District was the weight of the fire engines and the impact of this on the ground beneath them.
President Welsh noted that there had been significant seismic work done eight to ten years earlier but that
hadn’t been sufficient. Mr. Watt responded that most recent seismic standards were issued in 2013 and the
last time the Public Safety Building had been touched had been several years prior to this. He added that,
when the work had been done, only certain parts of the building had been addressed. He said the District
should start setting money aside. He said the community had been going through several good years, with
significant increases in levy tax revenue, and this would not continue forever; therefore, the District needed
to set aside money. He noted that the unrestricted fund balance was close to $1.3 million. Ms. Russell
responded that the unrestricted fund balance was actually a negative $1.3 million because of the new GASB
liability. Ms. Russell said that, without the GASB liability, the District’s total net position was $2.59
million but that, with it, the unrestricted net position was negative $1.26 million. She noted that, at the end
of the prior fiscal year the unrestricted net position had been a positive $1.33 million and that the difference
was due to the introduction of GASB 68, which required the District to record the net pension liability of
$2.56 million. She said that, from a cash standpoint, the District was in good shape.

Linda Lipscomb thanked the subcommittee for its work. She said that the District had a very stable source
of income and that, unlike neighboring communities, the District was not dependent on less stable revenue
sources like sales taxes and redevelopment funds. She said that, because of this, she would rather see 10%
rather than 16%, as a contingency. Rob Firmin responded that this was a good point but that there were
substantial uncertainties on both sides. He said he had concerns that revenue could decline by 10% and that,
at the same time, CalPERS costs could increase. Ms. Lipscomb responded that the impact of CalPERS
would likely be mitigated because of the introduction of PEPRA. Jim Watt said he was concerned about
expenses, which he noted had been causing a gradual decline in the District’s reserves. He noted that there
were unknown costs associated with the Community Center and the Public Safety Building and, therefore,
the District should put more money aside. Ms. Lipscomb responded that the Public Safety Building had
been upgraded several times and asked, if the building were to be rebuilt on a larger footprint, would it be
done to accommaodate the neighboring jurisdiction or for Kensington’s purposes. She said there were
requirements associated with rebuilding and some of these could be relaxed if the building retained its
current footprint; however, this could change if the work were to exceed a certain dollar amount or if the
building were to be completely rebuilt on a new footprint. She questioned whose interests would be served
with the hook and ladder building, when Kensington was comprised of mostly two-story houses. She also
questioned the need to establish a reserve policy before the community had looked at consolidation.

Paula Black said that there were two elements to look at: a reserve policy for operating expenses to guard
against an economic downturn or natural disaster and a capital reserve policy to guard against costs for the
Community Center. Ms. Lipscomb responded that the largest component was operating expense and that
this closely matched stable revenue and, thus, she didn’t want to tie down too much money, as would be the
case with 16%. She added that capital expenditures were made on an as-you-can basis.

Paul Haxo said there were three different proposals: a general fund reserve policy; a Community Center
commitment policy; and a policy for other capital improvements. He said the major commitment could not
be funded through the income stream: It would need to be funded through a bond. He said he had hoped
this could wait until the year 2020, at which time the other bond would be paid off. He said that he didn’t
object to committing some money to be set aside but that he did oppose putting money into a reserve
because releasing that money would require a 4/5™ vote of the Board. He said that, having served on the
KPPCSD Board for ten years, he knew it could be very difficult to obtain a 4/5" vote. He said he was
opposed to anything that would require more than a three to two vote and noted the hazards of a
government shutdown. He said he was opposed to the reserve proposal because the Board had to have the
right to be flexible. He said that, by not providing flexibility, the Board would be hamstrung. He noted that
one of the beauties of special district government was its flexibility.

Director Toombs said that a reserve policy could not restrict the actions of future boards, that this had been
something noted by the District’s attorneys, and that a reserve policy would need to be flexible.

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 7



Jim Watt responded by saying that, before putting anything into final form, the attorneys should take a look
at the proposal. He noted that almost every community at which he had looked had some kind of reserve
policy. President Welsh responded that the District had a policy right now that said the Board couldn’t meet
past 10:00 P.M. unless at least 4/5" of the Board voted to do so. He added that the Board’s prior meeting
had come to an early end because there had not been a 4/5% vote to continue past that time.

Paul Haxo said he was fairly certain that a reserve policy for the District would require a 4/5" vote to effect
a change to it. He added that there would be a difference between suggesting that the unassigned amount
should not be less than a certain amount and setting aside an actual reserve. He noted that these were legal
definitions with specific legal implications. President Welsh responded that the magic was in the way the
District would define this; reserve was a troublesome term and perhaps it could be called something else as
long as the term used was clearly defined. He said that the issue was how rigid or flexible things should be
and that the Committee needed to develop this more.

Jim Watt responded that the Committee needed to act as finance people and that, before the Committee
discussed the budget, it should discuss how much should be set aside. He said that, while the District may
need things like body cameras, it also needed to take care of the Community Center. He added that children
and adults came into the building and that, in the event of a major earthquake, some could die. He added
that the Building Committee was about to go out to bid and there likely weren’t enough funds to take care
of the needed work. He said they could go to KCC and beg, but so far they were saying no. He said he
wanted the Committee to put $150,000 aside this year for the building, then revisit the second $150,000
next year, and put aside $60,000 for the other building issue. Director Toombs responded that this would be
different from setting a reserve: Mr. Watt wanted to establish a line item in the budget, in the amount of
$150,000.

Director Toombs said he wanted to ask questions of the subcommittee. He asked why the subcommittee
had selected 16% of revenue instead of 16% of expenses, noting that expenses sometime fluctuated. Mr.
Watt responded that revenues were more stable and said that 17% was the actual recommendation. Director
Toombs noted that Adam Benson had suggested 25%. Mr. Watt responded that was the percentage amount
he, himself, had wanted. Director Toombs said that, on a typical year, the subcommittee’s recommended
total reserves would equal $916,976 ($500,000 of general fund restriction; and $206,976 plus $150,000
plus another $60,000 for building reserves) out of the District’s current $1.3 million, or 75%. Mr. Watt
responded that this was probably correct.

President Welsh said he wanted to evaluate what services might be compromised should the Board choose
to follow the recommendation. He also noted that, should the Fire District do major work on the Public
Safety Building, the Police Department could be homeless for two or more years and this could be very
expensive.

Paula Black noted that the KPPCSD owned the Community Center, the Annex, Building E, and the park
and said that all of these would need maintenance in the future.

Karl Kruger asked for clarification about the issue of binding future boards. Director Toombs responded
that the purpose could not be narrowly defined. Mr. Kruger said that the District was doing pretty well
because revenues had been better than had been anticipated, and the District had set conservative budgets.
He said, however, that the District’s legal fees continued to be high. He noted that the $500,000 that the
subcommittee had come up with equaled two months of revenue and that this amount would be set aside
for extreme emergencies, regardless of what the set-aside would be called. He also said that $150,000 each
year for the Community Center was a reasonable amount.

Paula Black said there had been a wide range of views on the subcommittee, and the numbers had resulted
from a lot of back and forth.

Ms. Russell said that Mr. Kruger’s point was well taken and that the terminology for set-aside amounts

needed to be consistent with the terms used in the audit. She also pointed out that there was a $127,000
amount set-aside in a cash account for vehicles. Because this hadn’t been mentioned, she asked if this

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 8



amount would be folded into one of the suggested funds. President Welsh responded that the amount
should be pared down. Ms. Russell responded that the District was no longer purchasing one new vehicle
per year and that, in those years when the District did buy a vehicle, it was purchased out of the general
fund, not out of this set-aside amount.

Pat McLaughlin said she was pleased by the recommendation to set aside money for the Community
Center. She noted that the District had not paid adequate attention to the way tax revenues had been
allocated: The focus had been on the police. She noted that some of the tax levy money should be spent on
the Community Center.

Derek Suring thanked the subcommittee for its work and noted that most of the communities whose
policies the subcommittee had looked at were wealthier than Kensington. He asked if the subcommittee had
researched whether the policies had been tested and, if so, had they worked. He questioned whether a
policy would have much force if it could be changed with a three to two vote. Ms. Black responded that,
regardless, it would force a public discussion.

Rob Firmin said that one of the purposes of the proposal was to force expense discipline and that is was
morally imperative to act on the Community Center promptly in order to avoid people being injured.
Director Toombs responded that that was why the District had worked so hard on Measure L.

Linda Lipscomb responded that the District had had $300,000 set aside for the Community Center for a
long time and that, had the work been done years ago, it probably could have been completed for that
amount. She also noted that the WW funds remaining, following the installation of the park restroom, had
been sitting there for a long time. She said it wasn’t enough to have the money set aside, the work actually
had to be done. President Welsh responded that the Park Buildings Committee was working to move things
forward.

David Spath said the Park Buildings Committee had done a good job. He said that, before money was
committed, all the needed enhancements for the Community Center should be determined. He noted that
the issue, with respect to the capital building fund, was that its lack of flexibility would tie the Board’s
hands. He said that other communities’ reserves were not restricted.

Jim Watt noted that the proposed language said general fund reserves could be used “only in a severe
economic downturn or a natural disaster and only after reasonable expenditure cuts had been
implemented.” He clarified that the $150,000 this year and next year would be used to meet the anticipated
costs of a building expected to cost $650,000, without getting KCC funds. He said that the reserve policy
recommendations were intended to show real financial integrity.

Jim Watt recommended that the Committee agree to set aside $150,000 in Fiscal-Year 2016-17 for
upgrades to the Community Center and that the Committee agree to set aside 4% of KPPCSD’s levy tax
income for a general capital building fund. Ms. Russell asked if the money should come out of regular
revenue. IGM/COP Hart asked if the District expected to spend the $150,000 in Fiscal-Year 2016-17. Mr.
Watt responded, “Possibly not.”

Paul Haxo asked if an account, similar to what had been created for vehicles, could be created for what Mr,
Watt wanted. Ms. Russell said she didn’t see why not. She noted this would be a transfer of assets and
would not show as an expenditure on the budget. Director Toombs suggested moving the $150,000 out of
the unassigned fund balance to the committed Park Buildings fund balance, instead of taking it out of the
revenue stream.

MOTION: Paul Haxo moved, and President Welsh seconded, that the Finance Committee
recommend to the Board that it transfer $150,000 from the unassigned fund balance to the
committed Park Building replacement fund.

Motion passed unanimously.

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 9



Jim Watt suggested that the Committee recommend to the Board that it set aside $60,000 of the levy tax
income into a fund committed to the Annex. Linda Lipscomb responded that, years ago, there had been a
termite report and a structural report on the Annex and that these showed that the Annex was not worth
rebuilding. Therefore, she said, committing $60,000 to this building would not take care of it and was
questionable. Mr. Watt responded that this would be an ongoing commitment - $60,000 this year, $60,000
the next year, and so on. He said he visualized needing something for the police department in two to three
years, at which point the District would have built up $120,000 to $180,000. Ms. Lipscomb noted that the
Annex had been determined to need more work than this amount would cover.

Pat McLaughlin said she opposed the idea of doing work on the Annex. She said the notion of using it as a
replacement building for the police department was a bad one because of the idea of police cars running up
and down, into and out of the park. Mr. Haxo added that this had been considered before and that, when it
had, the Community Center had been filled with people opposed to the notion. Ms. McLaughlin said the
District should wait to allocate any funds to the Annex until there was a sense of what its use might be.

President Welsh recommended deferring further discussion on the matter to the Committee’s next meeting.
He said he wanted IGM/COP Hart to weigh in on whether it was even feasible for the police department to
use the Annex. He said he also wanted to know what the requirements would be if a new Public Safety
Building were to be constructed.

Linda Lipscomb and President Welsh said that there appeared not to be a reason to have a specific fund
when there was no certain idea of what was needed.

Paula Black said the subcommittee was not proposing moving money from the unassigned funds; rather the
intent had been to have it be a line item expense in the budget each year. Ms. Russell said it didn’t work
that way unless there was an actual expenditure.

President Welsh asked if there was any use, other than as a temporary home for the police, which the
subcommittee had contemplated for the Annex. Ms. Black responded it could be used as a teen or senior
center. Ms. Lipscomb responded that the building would then need to be retrofitted.

President Welsh recommended gathering up all the prior work that had been done with respect to the
Annex by the Muller Caulfield study and determining what the options and corresponding expenses would
be. District Administrator Wolter noted that the Muller Caulfield Report was on the District’s website.

IGM/COP Hart said that the records he’d seen indicated that it would cost approximately $400,000 to
address ADA compliance and other issues with respect to the Annex and said this work likely would not be
done in Fiscal-Year 2016-17. Director Toombs added that the Annex was part of the Park Buildings
Committee’s portfolio. IGM/COP Hart noted that recommendations about Annex should come from the
Park Buildings Committee to the Finance Committee and then, ultimately, to the Board.

President Welsh said that other elements of the subcommittee’s recommendations, on which the Committee
had not taken action, should appear of the Committee’s next agenda.

The Committee reviewed and considered recommending approval to the Board of Directors the
Fiscal Year 2016/17 proposed budget. The Kensington Police Protection and Community Services
District Board of Directors would review and possible vote to approve the proposed budget for FY
2016/17 at its Regular Meeting to be held on May 12, 2016.

IGM/COP Hart introduced the item by providing a general overview of the document, noting that a budget
was a planning tool. He reported that expenses were budgeted to be $3.092 million and revenue was
budgeted to be $3.105 million. He added that the line items for Automated License Plate Readers (APLRs)
and body cameras were placeholders and noted that police salaries and benefits totaled $2.205 million. He
summarized all other budget category subtotals.

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 10



IGM/COP Hart reported that salary expense would increase slightly because the Board had approved a new
MOU but that those increases would largely be offset by the officers’ concessions under that same MOU.
He reported that the police salary and benefits subtotal was budgeted to be $2.205 million and that the
police expenses subtotal, which included items such as CallD — a system similar to ALPRs and that had
recently enabled Kensington officers to identify a woman in a stolen vehicle incident, would be
approximately $313,000.

Derek Suring asked why Radio Maintenance, Account 566, had decreased by approximately $19,000.
IGM/COP Hart responded that the Motorola lease/purchase agreement had concluded. Mr. Suring also
asked about reserve officers. IGM/COP Hart responded that, when he had been hired, there had been three
reserve officers. He added that he had recently hired two reserve officers, that the last remaining reserve
officer was in background with another agency, and that he’d like to have five reserves.

Karl Kruger asked if Adam Benson’s fees were part of the consulting expenses. IGM/COP Hart confirmed
this. Mr. Kruger asked what work Mr. Benson might perform in the upcoming fiscal year. IGM/COP Hart
responded that he might be needed to perform some financial analyses. Mr. Kruger asked why the
accounting costs had been so high for the current fiscal year. Ms. Russell responded that this had resulted
from additional hours spent on the audit, projects, and financial analyses.

IGM/COP Hart summarized recreation expenses and reported that the subtotals were approximately
$31,000 for salaries and benefits and approximately $88,000 for other recreation expenses. He then
summarized District expenses and capital outlays.

IGM/COP Hart summarized the District’s police activities revenue, which was budgeted to total
$2,909,219. He reported that recreation revenue was budgeted to be approximately $68,000, that the
District’s activities revenue was budgeted to be $65,000, and that total revenue was budgeted to be
$3,042,419. Ms. Russell noted that this did not include COPS grant money, which could not be included in
budgeted revenue. President Welsh responded that this grant would increase total revenue by
approximately $100,000 to $150,000. IGM/COP Hart reported that net income was budgeted to be
(50,219), excluding anticipated COPS grant revenue. He reported that the cash carryover from the Fiscal-
Year 2015-16 was projected to be $2,093,742, and the carryover for Fiscal-Year 2016-17 was projected to
be $2,043,523.

IGM/COP Hart reported that identified fund balances were projected to be $344,403 and that unassigned
fund balances were projected to be $1,699,120. He noted that the projected unassigned fund balance could
be available for contingencies.

Jim Watt noted that, for Fiscal-Year 2015-16, levy tax revenue (Account 401) was $1.555 million and said
that his contact at the County had told him two months earlier that the District would be receiving $1.537
million in levy taxes. He asked where the additional funds had come from. Ms. Russell responded that, in
May of every year, the District had traditionally received between $30,000 and $50,000 of “old” money
that people hadn’t paid plus other supplemental money.

Jim Watt also noted that Franchise Fees, shown as $65,000, were restricted funds and that the amount was
in keeping with his own calculation. Ms. Russell responded that she appreciated Mr. Watt’s confirming the
estimate because staff had had a difficult time getting revenue information from Bay View Refuse.

Paula Black asked how the projected increase in levy tax, to $1.641 million, had been ascertained. Ms.
Russell responded that she had subtracted the extra May money from the Fiscal-Year 2015-16 levy tax
amount and then multiplied that amount by 6%. IGM/COP added that the County likely would provide
percentage increase information in early July.

IGM/COP Hart reported that Account 502 provided salary information for 10 officers, including one new
officer at Step 2 and Step 3 during the fiscal year. Mr. Watt said he appreciated the officers’ salary schedule
but noted that IGM/COP Hart was shown to receive a raise to $150,000. Ms. Russell responded that she
had worked from what had been budgeted, prior to the medical issue, which she had thought, was over. Mr.

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 11 \ ’L/



watt said the amount should be $145,000. IGM/COP Hart concurred and said it would be taken care of. Ms.
Russell noted that the salary schedule reflected the changes resulting from the new MOU.

With respect to Account 504, Jim Watt asked about an officer who might retire in Fiscal-Year 2016-17.
IGM/COP Hart responded that, should that happen, the actual amount might be higher than the budgeted
amount.

IGM/COP Hart reported on Account 506 (Overtime). Mr. Watt said that overtime had been higher in the
prior year and the current year because the department had been short-handed and that, given the fact that
the department was now fully staffed, the overtime amount should drop back down. IGM/COP Hart
responded that three officers were currently out and one was in training and that it would take only one
serious case to quickly drive up overtime costs. Mr. Watt responded that, in normal times, this amount
should be in the $50,000 - $60,000 range. Linda Lipscomb asked IGM/COP Hart what amount he needed,
noting that no one else in the room was a professional police person. IGM/COP Hart responded that, if one
looked at the current year’s overtime expenditures, the amount spent through March 31* was approximately
$57,000 and so he was going to exceed the amount that had been budgeted for the current fiscal year.
IGM/COP Hart added that this was not a “spend all you can” kind of budget. Ms. Lipscomb noted that, if
the money isn’t spent, it goes “back in the pot.” Ms. Lipscomb said that this was the IGM/COP’s planning
tool and asked if this was the amount he needed to get the department through the year. IGM/COP Hart
noted that one officer was likely going to retire during the fiscal year and that this could also contribute to
more overtime. Ms. Lipscomb said it had been her experience that the Finance Committee had, in the past,
attempted to micro-manage the GM/COP’s planning and that she appreciated the time that IGM/COP Hart
had invested in the budget. Rob Firmin and Mr. Watt responded that it was the Finance Committee’s
responsibility to look at everything. President Welsh asked if Mr. Watt had found IGM/COP Hart’s
explanation satisfactory. Mr. Watt indicated he hadn’t. President Welsh responded that IGM/COP Hart had
already indicated that, because he was short-handed, the amount budgeted for overtime was appropriate.
IGM/COP Hart said that, when officers are injured and there was an obligation to provide 24/7 coverage
for the District, the remaining officers needed to work overtime. He said that, in addition, if there were to
be any special circumstance in addition to this, officers would need to work additional hours of overtime.
He noted that this was the nature of police work. Director Toombs asked if the officers on light duty
generated overtime. IGM/COP Hart responded that they had worked some overtime because of special
assignment work and that he had reassigned officers to minimize overtime. He also noted that, if someone
were to take a vacation or call in sick at this time, another officer would need to work overtime to cover
those shift hours. Ms. Russell clarified that the officers on light duty weren’t causing overtime: rather, the
shifts of other officers were being changed to ensure adequate coverage; and then, if any of the officers not
on light duty went on vacation or called in sick, other officers would need to cover with overtime.

Celia Concus said that one of the sergeants was spending time operating the video equipment during
meetings and asked if it wouldn’t be better if someone else could do this for less than $100 per hour.
IGM/COP Hart responded that, most of the time, he adjusted Sergeant Hui’s hours. IGM/COP Hart added
that the video system was unique and required someone to operate it and that, if the District were to get the
new sound system, it would eliminate this position. Ms. Concus asked when the new system would be
acquired. IGM/COP Hart responded that extensive research had been done on what was needed. He noted
that $6,000 had been budgeted for the current fiscal year, but that research revealed that a more expensive
audio-video system, with an estimated cost of $21,000, would be needed. He added that the KIC
(Kensington Improvement Club) had offered to contribute up to $5,000, the KCC (Kensington Community
Council) had approved an amount up to $3,000, and the KPOA (Kensington Property Owners’ Association)
was still considering whether to contribute. He said, based on this information, he would need to go back to
the District Board to ask for additional funds. He provided a description of the proposed system, which
called for eight speakers, ADA compliant audio, and a secure automated audio-video system. President
Welsh asked when IGM/COP Hart thought the system would be operational. IGM/COP Hart responded
that he’d like to get the system up and running by June 30", should the Board authorize the needed
additional money. IGM/COP Hart noted that most of the work on the system had been done by Sergeant
Hui, whose daytime hours were limited, which caused the process to take longer than anticipated. Mr. Watt
asked if the anticipated renovation of the Community Center would adversely impact the sound system.
IGM/COP Hart responded that the renovation work had been anticipated and that only the speakers might

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 12



need to be moved during the work. He concluded by saying that he wanted to move forward with the sound
system because it was important to the community but that it was important to get it right because it was
expensive. Karl Kruger asked for confirmation that, with the proposed new system, the third highest paid
officer would no longer be needed to operate the system. IGM/COP Hart responded that there were only
two people knew how to put together the current system: Sergeants Hui and Barrow.

IGM/COP Hart reported on Account 508 (Part-time Non-sworn Employees) and said that he had one full-
time equivalent, split by two individuals. Paula Black asked if the proposed CPI increase was contractual.
IGM/COP Hart responded it was not: it was the same cost of living increase that the officers had received,
and he had put it in the budget for the Board’s consideration. Mr. Watt responded that the officers were
giving back 2% of their 3% increase. It was noted that non-sworn staff did not receive pension benefits to
which the officers’ 2% giveback was applied. Mr. Watt responded that he received Social Security but
hadn’t received an increase this year. Mr. Watt added that he had a bigger issue: District Administrator
Wolter was shown as receiving overtime. He said a standard year’s work of 2,100 hours, and she was down
for 1,560 regular hours and 60 overtime hours. He wanted to know when the overtime had come into play.
He said that, when he had been working in private industry, he could get people to do this kind of work for
$25 to $30 per hour. He said these wages were incredible, and he didn’t approve of it at all. Linda
Lipscomb responded that more than eight hours worked in a day constituted overtime — it had nothing to do
with the length of the week: This was the law. Ms. Russell said that Ms. Wolter was not a dime-a-dozen.
Ms. Russell said she had trained five or six people before Ms. Wolter and the District could not get a
“keeper.” She added that the District couldn’t get accurate payroll, the District had been without insurance
for a period of time. Mr. Watt responded that this wasn’t a question of a dime-a-dozen: It was $70 per hour.
Ms. Russell responded that this was the overtime amount — at $4,000 for the year. She noted that this was
not Ms. Wolter’s regular pay rate. Ms. Lipscomb added that Ms. Wolter was invaluable. Ms. Russell
reiterated that she had been through half a dozen people who could not do this job. IGM/COP Hart said
that, in the year he had been in Kensington, he had never seen or met anyone who could do the job Ms.
Wolter does; with the insurance, with CalPERS, payroll, and all the things she does. He said she does an
amazing job and the District is lucky to have her. Pat McLaughlin added that, until Ms. Wolter, none of the
previous people had been able to do payroll: the District had been paying Ms. Russell to do payroll, at Ms.
Russell’s rates. Ms. Lipscomb noted that the $4,000 budgeted for Ms. Wolter’s overtime constituted tiny
percent of the District’s budget and said that to denigrate Ms. Wolter while she was present was not
appropriate. Mr. Watt responded that this was not a denigration of Ms. Wolter; rather, it was that, if one
extrapolated this out at 2,100 hours, Ms. Wolter would be at $100,000 per year. Ms. Lipscomb responded
that she would be worth every penny. President Welsh added that he didn’t know what world Mr. Watt was
living in but people with skills got paid well. He added that people think the town runs itself and that the
only things they care about are their own issues. He said Ms. Wolter is in the office every day dealing with
problems about which most people had no clue. He said he had a clue because his own phone rings off the
hook. He concluded by asking that, before Mr. Watt went off on this path, he should do a little bit more to
find out the value of Ms. Wolter’s service. Mr. Kruger noted that the hours didn’t match. IGM/COP Hart
responded that he would fix that.

IGM/COP Hart asked Ms. Russell to report on Accounts 521 A, R, and T. Ms. Russell said she had done a
big spreadsheet to ensure that the numbers were accurate, based on currently known rates. She reported
that, because of the new MOU, there would be money coming back from the officers, so the net amount
would be less for 521 A, Mr. Watt said there was a problem because there were only three rate structures
listed for medical plans. Ms. Russell responded that the District had an employee who used PORAC, which
was less than the Kaiser rates. Mr. Watt asked for confirmation that IGM/COP Hart would be contributing
$85 towards his medical premiums. Director Toombs responded in the affirmative and added that
IGM/COP Hart’s contract was tied to the officers’ MOU in this respect. Director Toombs asked if the 5%
projected increase in the Kaiser rates was just a “plug” number. Ms. Russell responded in the affirmative.
Ms. Russell reported that 52 1R was the same formula and that the retired officers would also be
contributing the same $85 that the officers would, per the new MOU. David Spath noted that, as the retirees
reached Medicare age, their costs would decline. Ms. Russell confirmed this. Ms. Russell reported that
521R plus 521T would equal the required OPEB ARC payment, which she said was an estimate based on
the most recent actuarial report. Mr. Watt said it had been agreed that, after some discussion, there would
be a new actuarial report following the adoption of the new MOU. Mr. Watt asked that, at its next meeting,

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 13 i d(



the Board authorize a new actuarial report. Ms. Russell noted that the text contained an error but that the
calculation was correct. Director Toombs questioned the $50,000 additional funding of the OPEB Trust.
Ms. Russell responded that, because the new actuarial report hadn’t been done, she had to include some
amount. She added that there had been some thought that the current actuarial report’s ARC amount had
been too low. Director Toombs asked, if a new actuarial report were done, would the District contribute
just the amount shown in the report, or would it contribute that amount plus an additional amount. Ms.
Russell responded that is should probably be the amount shown in the report — but that would be up to the
District. Director Toombs suggested that it be made clear that, during the budget process, this amount likely
would change. Ms. Russell asked how long it would take to complete a new actuarial report. IGM/COP
Hart responded it would take about two months and would cost $8,000 - $10,000.

Jim Watt asked about Account 527 CalPERS Contributions. He noted that the PEPRA employee’s rate was
shown at 12.082% and said he thought it should be higher. Ms. Russell responded that the District’s
PEPRA employee currently paid 11.5% and the District paid 11.115% for him. Ms. Russell assured Mr.
Watt that the budgeted percentage was correct.

Director Toombs asked why there had been such a big increase in Account 530 Workers’ Comp. Ms.
Russell responded that, because an officer had been out for a long time with a workers’ comp. injury, the
District needed to, essentially, repay the amount that had been paid out. Director Toombs noted that the
District was self-insured.

Jim Watt questioned the amount budgeted for Account 562. IGM/COP Hart noted that he had reduced the
gas price from the prior year’s budgeted amount. Mr. Watt questioned the 7,000 gallons cited, when the
number of miles being driven didn’t seem to justify this. He noted that the District was under budget by a
considerable amount for this account for the current fiscal year. IGM/COP Hart responded that there would
be an upcoming increase in the expenses charged to this account because of recent repairs having been
made to the fleet. President Welsh asked where the 7,000 gallons estimate had come from and asked him to
take a look at this. IGM/COP Hart responded that he would do so.

IGM/COP Hart reported on Account 830 Legal. He said that he had left this amount the same. He said this
was a discussion the Board needed to have. He said that the actual amount for this account would be quite
over budget and so, he didn’t know what amount to budget. Ms. Russell said she had tried to get detailed
information from Public Law Group’s accounting department to determine who was running up the bills.
Karl Kruger said it didn’t help that Board meetings went on for hours and hours and people were hostile
toward one another. He added that, if people could just get along, legal costs would be lower. Paula Black
asked why the District didn’t have in-house legal counsel. President Welsh responded that it was because
the District needed more specialists and that, even with a general counsel, that person would end up
“farming out” many issues. Jim Watt asked if the Finance Committee should be recommending something
and, if so, he would recommend increasing the amount to $175,000. Mr. Kruger responded that, if it were
in the budget, it would be used. President Welsh suggested that the budgeted amount not be changed until
more information had been obtained about who and what were generating the costs. Simon Brafman said he
thought the hourly rate of $295 was too high. President Welsh and Director Toombs responded that it was
not.

Karl Kruger asked what the legal fee was for Account 890 Solid Waste. Staff responded that the amount
had been reduced from $25,000 to $19,000 and that, following discussion among IGM/COP Hart, Ms.
Russell and staff, it had been determined that it would be wise to have some amount budgeted for legal fees
in this account. Ms. Russell said there seemed to be a belief that, if it’s in the budget, it will get spent, and
she didn’t believe that. Mr. Kruger said he didn’t think it was a problem to go over budget — as long as
there was a legitimate explanation. Rob Firmin said that, according to Gail Feldman, this line item should
appear as an “isolated island.” Ms. Russell responded that this was, technically, part of the Districts’
general fund but that this revenue and expense was reconciled at the end of the fiscal year and appeared, in
its cumulative ending balance amount, as one of the Committee Fund Balances.

With respect to body cameras, President Welsh said he wanted to get the issue out there so that people
would know the District was looking at this. He said he didn’t want to get halfway through the fiscal year

KPPCSD Finance Committee Minutes — May 4, 2016 14



and then have the Board decide it was going to proceed with this and then have the community respond that
the item hadn’t been budgeted. He said that, now that the issue was out there, he didn’t object to removing
it from the budget, with the understanding that it would be revisited later, if it were to come to fruition. Karl
Kruger said he didn’t think the District needed license plate readers but said he did want there to be a
discussion about body cameras and a corresponding policy. Director Toombs said he thought an amount
should not be decided upon until after the community has met to discuss the issue and therefore, he favored
taking both the ALPRs and the body cameras out of the budget. President Welsh said the District needed to
talk about its priorities: Was it being state of the art with respect to police services or protecting children
from a falling roof during an earthquake? President Welsh said that there had been very different versions
of incidents involving residents and police and that body cameras could spare the District a lot of
controversy in many situations. Committee consensus was that the ALPRs and body cameras should be
removed from the budget. IGM/COP Hart concluded by saying that he had presented the items for purposes
of discussion and that he understood the community’s perception. He said he would recommend that the
community have the discussion and that this probably should occur in August. It was asked if ALPRs
would discourage criminals from coming into the community. IGM/COP Hart responded that they certainly
could. President Welsh said that he would like to deal with the body camera issue first and that the license
plate readers were going to be much more controversial.

Ms. Russell said that, with respect to Account 972, she wanted to point out that it included ADA/seismic
upgrades at $400,000 less the committed funds of 193,931 and WW funds of §159,000 for a total outlay of
$48.069. Director Toombs asked if the committed funds had declined from $206,000 to $193,931 because
money had already been spent on consultants. IGM/COP Hart responded in the affirmative. Director
Toombs asked if the WW Fund money had been shown as revenue to offset the expense. Mr. Watt
responded that the funds would be received only after the work had been completed. Ms. Russell responded
that she was accounting for the WW Funds by using the amount to reduce expense. Derek Suring asked if
the money would be spent in Fiscal-Year 2016-17. IGM/COP Hart responded that the District could,
potentially, start the work this year, but that the WW money likely wouldn’t be received until Fiscal-Year
2017-18. IGM/COP Hart added that an RFP was being developed and it likely would be out soon. Ms.
Russell clarified that the Committee had recommended placing $150,000 in a cash account for the
Community Center. Mr. Watt asked if $48,000 was the amount budgeted to be spent on the Community
Center. Ms. Russell responded in the negative. She said that would be the net amount: The amount to be
spent was budgeted at $400,000, with offsets from the committed funds and the WW money. Committee
consensus was that the $400,000 should be revised down to $100,000 for start-up costs, with an offset of
$100,000 from the committed building fund: This would leave a net expenditure of zero. Ms. Russell
clarified that, for audit purposes, this transaction would appear as a $100,000 expenditure because the
income had already been reported as such in a prior year.

MOTION: Derek Suring moved, and President Welsh seconded, that the Finance Committee
recommend that the Board adopt the budget with the Committee’s proposed amendments.

Motion passed unanimously.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:26 PM

Lynn Wolter

KPPCSD Finance Commitiee Minutes — May 4, 2016 15



KENSINGTON POLICE PROTECTION
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Date: June 15, 2016

TO: KPPCSD Board
KPPCSD Finance Committee

FROM: Kevin E. Hart, Interim General Manager

Subject: Item 4-Review contract for Independent Auditing Services

The Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District has used Fechter &
Company as its independent auditor of the District’s financial statements and government
activities for the past three years. Our contractual agreement has concluded.

The General Manager recommends changing to another firm at this time. Previous to Fechter &
Company, the District used the firm Lamorena & Chang for a number of years. The Kensington

Fire District has used them for a number of years with good success, and currently uses them to
perform their annual required audit.

The General Manager recommends we employ Lamorena & Chang to perform independent
auditing services for the District.

A three year contract for services is included in this staff report.
Cost to the District: $14,000 annually.

General Manager Recommendation: Receive the report, take public comment, deliberate and
recommgnd the Board of Directors approve the contract for services.

f/ék
Kekin E. Hart

Interim General Manager

217 Arlington Avenue ¢ Kensington, California 94707-1401 e (510) 526-4141 ! /]



Lamvorena & CHANG

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

22 Barvery Streer, Surre 412 TELEPHONE: 415.781.8441
San Francisco, CaLiFornia 94111 Facsmmiie: 415.781.8442

April 5, 2016

To Chief Kevin Hart and Board of Directors

Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District
217 Arlington Ave.

Kensington, CA 94707

Dear Chief Hart and Board of Directors,

| am pleased to confirm my understanding of the services | am to provide Kensington Police Protection and
Community Services District (KPPCSD) for the year ended June 30, 2016 and the subsequent two years. | will audit
the financial statements general Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Capital Project Fund, including the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of KPPCSD as of and for the
12 months ended June 30, 2016. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide
for certain required supplementary information (RSl), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to
supplement KPPCSD's basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. As part of my engagement, | will apply certain limited procedures to KPPCSD's RSI in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge |
obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. | will not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be
subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

1) Management's Discussion and Analysis.
2) Statement of revenue, expenditure and changes in fund balance schedule

| have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies KPPCSD's
financial statements. | will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in my
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, and | will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Audit Objectives

The objective of my audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented,
in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness
of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. My audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of KPPCSD and
other procedures | consider necessary to enable me to express such opinions. | will issue a written report upon
completion of my audit of KPPCSD'’s financial statements. My report will be addressed to KPPCSD's manager and
commissioner/board member provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may
arise in which it is necessary for me to modify my opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs.

K%



If my opinions on the financial statements are other than unmadified, | will discuss the reasons with you in advance.
If, for any reason, | am unable to complete the audit or am unable to form or have not formed opinions, | may decline
to express opinions or issue reports, or may withdraw from this engagement.

| will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements
and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The
report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the
purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control on compliance, and (2)
that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity's internal control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable
for any other purpose. If during my audit | become aware that KPPCSD is subject to an audit requirement that is
not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, | will communicate to management and those charged with
governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or
contractual requirements.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for the financial statements and all accompanying information as far as all
representations contained therein. As part of the audit, | will assist with preparation of your financial statements and
related notes. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such
services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. You agree to assume all
management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and any other nonaudit services
| provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation lefter my assistance with
preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial
statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree
to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, who possesses
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept
responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including evaluating and
monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met, following laws and
regulations; and ensuring that management is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported.
Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of
accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the
provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to me and for the
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing me with (1) access to all
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, (2) additional information that | may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to
persons within the government from whom | determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming
to me in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by me during
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and
for informing me about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2)
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect
on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing me of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud
or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government
complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate
steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or
abuse that | report.



You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. You agree to include my report on the supplementary information in any document that
contains and indicates that | have reported on the supplementary information. Your responsibilities include
acknowledging to me in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the
supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its
form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation
have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and
(4) you have disclosed to me any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or
presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for me previous financial audits, attestation
engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to me corrective actions taken to address significant
findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, aftestation engagements, performance audits, or other
studies. You are also responsible for providing management's views on my current findings, conclusions, and
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for
providing that information.

Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; therefore, my audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the
areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. | will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2)
fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations
that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government.
Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide
reasonable assurance of detecting abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and
because | will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may
exist and not be detected by me, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to
detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, | will inform the appropriate level of management of any
material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to my attention. | will also
inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to my
attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to my attention. My responsibility
as an auditor is limited to the period covered by my audit and does not extend to later periods for which | am not
engaged as an auditor.

My procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts,
and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain
other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial
institutions. | will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill
you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of my audit, | will require certain written representations from
you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards.

Audit Procedures—Internal Control

My audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing,
and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain
controls that | consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance



matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. My tests, if performed, will be less in
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be
expressed in my report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, during the audit, | will communicate to management and those charged with governance
internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and
Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
| will perform tests of KPPCSD’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts,
agreements, and grants. However, the objective of my audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance
and | will not express such an opinion in my report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing
Standards.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

I may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your
account. | may share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain committed to
maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, | maintain internal policies, procedures,
and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, 1 will secure confidentiality
agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and | will take reasonable
precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of
vour confidential information to others. In the event that | am unabie to secure an appropriate confidentiality
agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the
third-party service provider. Furthermore, | will remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party
service providers.

| understand that your employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations | request and will locate any documents
selected by me for testing.

| will provide copies of my reports to County of Contra Costa and state controller office; however, management is
responsible for distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or
containing privileged and confidential information, copies of my reports are to be made available for public
inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Lamorena & Chang, CPA and constitutes
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate
individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to County of Contra Costa or its designee,
a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of
a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. | will notify you of
any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of
Lamorena & Chang, CPA personnel. Furthermore, upon request, | may provide copies of selected audit
documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or
information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release
date or for any additional period requested by the County of Contra Costa. If | am aware that a federal awarding
agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, | will contact the party contesting the audit finding for guidance
prior to destroying the audit documentation.

| expect to begin my audit on approximately early September and to issue my reports no later than November 15.
Steven Chang is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the reports
or authorizing another individual to sign them.

My fee for these services will be at my standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction,
word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that | agree that my estimated flat rate of $14,000
for each of those three years. My standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and
the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. My invoices for these fees will be rendered each month



as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with my firm policies, work may be suspended
if your account becomes 30 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If |
elect to terminate my services for nonpayment, my engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon
written notification of termination, even if | have not completed my report. You will be obligated to compensate me
for all time expended and to reimburse me for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above
fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances
will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, | will discuss it with you and
arrive at a new fee estimate before | incur the additional costs.

I appreciate the opportunity to be of service to KPPCSD and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant
terms of my engagement. If you have any questions, please let me know. If you agree with the terms of my
engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to me.

Very truly yours,

Lamorena & Chang, CPA
RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of KPPCSD

Management signature:

Title:

Date:

Governance signature:

Titie:

Date:




To: Chairman Welsh, Co-Chairman Toombs and IGM/COP Hart
From: Jim Watt

Date: June 12, 2016
Subject: KPPCSD Budget Reserves Policy

At the May 4 Finance Committee meeting the recommendations for a reserves policy
prepared by a 5-member sub-committee were discussed. These recommendations ere
contained in the sub-committee’s report dated April 19, 2016 (copy attached).

The full committee discussed these recommendations and agreed to recommend that the
Board adopt the proposal to add $150,000 to the Community Center Building Upgrade
fund for budget year 2016/2017. The Finance Committee did not take action on the
following recommendations by the sub-committee.

1. To add and additional $150,000 to the Community Center Building Upgrade fund
for fiscal year 2017/2018. The purpose of this additional $150,000 was to bring
the total committed District funds for the Community Center upgrade to
approximately $500,000. When the WW grant of $158,000 is included this will
approximately match the estimated costs to complete required seismic and ADA
work on the building. We are assuming that that an estimated $300,000 might be
forthcoming from the KCC to complete further building enhancements.

2. The sub-committee recommended that the District agree to set aside 4% of annual
revenues from county levy tax (code 401) to be used for major capital building
improvements with an expected useful life of 15 years. Since code 401 is running
about $1.5 million annually this would be approximately $60,000 per year. While
the sub-committee did not wish to earmark this fund for any specific project, it
should be noted that the Fire Board is studying the possibility of the
replacement/remodel of the fire station that could result in the need for the
District to find temporary quarters for the police department.

3. The final sub-committee recommendation on which the full finance committee
did not act was a recommendation that the District agree to maintain a minimum
contingency reserve for operating expenditures of no less than $500,000 or 16%
of total annual revenues. (Note: Current annual revenues are about $3.0 million,
so 16% would be $480,000.) This money was to be used only in the event of a
severe economic downturn or a natural disaster and only after all reasonable
expenditure cuts had been implemented. Some members of the full finance
committee felt this would place undue restrictions on the Board’s ability to deal
with financial issues.

The full finance committee agreed to consider these issues again at their next meeting. It
was recommended that [ provide committee members with information on how these
recommendations would impact the District’s finances and any other information in
support of these recommendations.



Impact of recommendations on the District’s Finances

At the time that the April 19, 2016 sub-committee report was prepared we did not have
access to the proposed 2016/17 budget. That budget has now been prepared and provides
some very important updates on the District’s finances. This information is summarized
in the table below.

This table shows the estimated cash carryover into 2016/17 as $2,093,742 and a fund
carryover of $2,204,958. The District has a number of funds that are earmarked for
specific projects and total $595,864. As shown, these “earmarked” funds include the
recommended $150,000 recommended by the sub-committee to be set aside for the
Community Center upgrade. Even afier subtracting these funds that have been set aside
for specific purposes, it is estimated that the District will be left with an Unassigned Fund
Balance for contingencies of $1,609,094,

As shown in the column on the right, if the recommendations of the sub-committee are
followed, the Unassigned Fund Balance will drop to $1,543,454, and the amount of
available cash after withholding $500,000 for reserves will be $1,043.454. In other
words, these changes will still leave the District with over $1.0 million in available
cash.

2016-2017

From Budget From Recommendations
Cash Carryovers 2015/2016 $2,093,742 No Change
Est. Fund Carryovers into 2016/17 $2,204,958 No Change
Fund Balances
Nonspendable —Dist. Bond 92,830 No Change
Restricted — Vac/Comp 70,000 NO Change
Restricted — Bay View Net Balance 88,413 No Change
Committed- Cap. Proj.(Vehicle Fund) 101,576 No Change
Committed- CC Bldg. Upgrade 150,000 No Change
Committed- Annex renovation -0- No Change
Assigned-Park Bldgs Rep. less16/17 Exp. 93,045 No Change
Committed-General Capital Bldg Fund Not Incld. $65,640*
Total Identified Fund Balances $595,864 $661,504
Unassigned Fund balance available
For Contingencies $1,609,094 $1,543,454
Reserve Requirement None 500,000
Available Cash $1,609,094 $1,043,454

4% of $1,641,000 (code 401 for 16/17) = $65,640



Other Information

We looked at other nearby communities as an indication of their desire to maintain an
adequate reserve policy. While the sub-committee felt that each community has its own
unique set of circumstances, we did note that almost every other community has a reserve
policy, with ranges from 10% to over 50%. Moreover, Adam Benson believes a reserves
policy of 25% is desirable. It was also noted that other communities typically set aside
funds for capital improvements. This certainly seems like the best approach to budgeting
for large capital expenditures rather than allocating all the funds in the year they are to be
spent.

Recommendation

That the full Finance Committee adopt the recommendation contained in the attached
Aprill10 2016 proposal.



To: Chairman Welsh, Co-Chairman Toombs, and IGM/COP Hart
From: Paula Black, Rob Firmin, Karl Kruger, Gloria Morrison, and Jim Watt
Date: April 19,2016

Subject: KPPCSD Budget Reserves Policy

Background

At the Finance Committee meeting on February 1, 2016, Committee members discussed
the need to formulate a reserve policy for possible adoption by the Board. To commence
the process the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to appoint a 5-member
subcommittee to provide recommendations for review by the full Finance Committee.
The five-subcommittee members are: Black, Firmin, Kruger, Morrison and Watt.

Methodology

In addition to an exchange of e-mail information on the subject, the subcommittee had
two meetings to discuss the appropriate course of action and the areas that should be
included as part of and over-arching reserve policy. The subcommittee unanimously
agreed that a reserve policy should include not only specifying the reserves necessary to
meet day-to-day cash flow needs and unforeseen contingencies, but also major capital
reserves necessary to fulfill the District’s obligations for the Kensington Community
Center and capital improvements for other District owned and operated buildings.

We looked at reserve policies in other communities, and found significant variations by
community. Therefore, we concluded that any final decision by Kensington has to fit its
own unique circumstances. Those circumstances include the fact that Kensington has a
fairly stable revenue base and that the daily cash flow needs can be met with somewhat
minimal reserves. Subcommittee members felt it was imperative that we adopt a

systematic approach to building up our reserves to complete necessary capital
improvements.

The attachments identified as “Source Material” were beneficial in formulating our
recommendations.

Recommendations

That the following three funds be established by Board resclution.

General Fund Unallocated reserve — That the District maintain a contingency reserve
for operating expenditures of no less than $500,000 or 16% of total annual revenues,
whichever is greater, in order to maintain the sound financial operation of the District.
This reserve may only be utilized in the event of a severe economic downturn or a natural



disaster and only after all reasonable expenditure cuts have been implemented, as
determined by final Board approval.

Community Center Building Upgrade - That the category currently designated in the
Budget under the heading Fund Balances as “Committed — Park Bldgs. Replacement” be
redesigned as “Community Center Upgrade”. That the funds curtently shown as
$206.,976 be augmented by an additional $150,000 in FYE 16/17 and an additional
$150,000 in FYE 17/18. The purpose of these additional “Committed” funds shall be to
set aside sufficient capital to meet the possible capital required to retrofit the building.
Upon completion of these Community Center improvements, any surplus funds shall be
assigned to the newly created General Capital Building Fund — see following.

General Capital Building Fund — That this new capital building fund be created with
the purpose of setting aside annual restricted funds for the purpose of completing
necessary capital improvements to District owned and operated facilities. The initial
amount to be included in this fund shall be based upon 4% of the annual revenues from
the County levy tax (code 401), and shall commence with budget year 16/17. The initial
4% may be increased, but not decreased, af the time each annual budget is approved. The
money in this account may only be used for major capital building improvement with an
expected useful life of 15 or more years.

The following would be the recommended changes to the line items shown under Fund
Balances — see attached complete page from the budget.

Fund balances, in audit terms (see definitions included)
Nonspendable — District Portion of Bond
Restricted — Est’d vacation/comp liability
Committed — Park Bldgs Replacement DELETED
Committed — Community Center Bldg Upgrade =~ ADDED
Committed - Annex Renovation Expenditure DELETED
Committed — General Capital Bldg. Fund ADDED
Committed — Bay view Net Balance

Total Identified Fund Balances

Conclusion

This proposed recommended reserves policy has been thoroughly vetted by the sub-
committee, with concessions made by all members in the interest of providing the full

committee with a recommended policy that has the unanimous approval of the sub-
commitiee.



Revised 08H4MS KPPESD ATTAcrwWmExT

Projected Revenue and Expense
20158/2918
Budgeted Revenues 2015/2018
400 - Police Activities Revenue
Total 406 - Police Activities Revenue

§2,791,952
Total 420 - Park/Rec Activities Revenue 71,500
A4Q - Distriet Activities Revenue
448 - Franchise Fees 48,300
458 - Interest-District 9
Total 440 - District Activities Revenue 48 800
Total Revenuss $2.812.262
Budgsted Expenditures 2015/20156
500 - Police Sal & Ben
Fotal 500 - Police Sal & Ben $2.063,670
Total 850 - Gther Police Expensas 325,268
Total 600 - Parkifec Sal & Ben 31,147
Total 835 - Park/Recrsation Expenses 06,716
Total BUO - District Expenses 271118
Total 950 - Capital Qutlay 31,000
Total Expenditures $2.858.920
Excess of Revenue over Expenses 20152018 $53,332
Previously Allecated Funds
Total Allogatsd Funds Used 0
Excess Funding over Expensss 2015/2816 83332
Cash Carrvovers 201472018 $1.480.683
Estimated Fund Carrvovers into 201512016 $1,533,984
Fund Bajances, in audit tsrms {see definitions insluded)
Monspendable - District Porfion of Bond $02,830
Resilcted ~ Estd Vacaticon/Comp Liab B8(LE0GO
Commitied - Park Bldgs Replacemant less FY 15/16 axpendifuras 208,978
Comrdtted - Annax Renovation Expenditurs in Current Yaar Q
Committed - Bay View Nat Balance 1977
Total ldentified Fund Balances §371.828
tinassignad Fund Balance available for Continganciss §1,162,185

Pgrcentage of Total Expenditures 40.65%



=47 ISHES WSl OH UBGIR BULEY  sdh,

-w Oroan) 1usuisfeue oand W
= Iz

W : . .

= LEAdO fuoisusd gspaRu
X jendes Buiobuo pue sajigel pepuniun s A0 ay) ale jeyp) sbesara| —
J

< Jpual) jesausb ayi si Jeuym pue jsed ay} Ui pejeniony sealesal

m aABY MOH i(peaunou; aJe sasuadxe uaym 0] sAlejel PaAaiedal senuanal Xejl

< Auedoud aie usym “e'1) spesu MOJ YseD S10MisI(] aUl ole teypn Axpinbyy —
- slsuiebe painsul g ueo
M ysu siyl jo (Aue ji) yonw moH ¢( 012 ‘el ‘eyenbypes o) Aejjno awlij-euo

= JaU30 10 JBISESIP [Blnjeu JO YSL @Y} SI JeUAL JSSoUBLSLUNDIII) DLUDIIXS —
4& S ONELIepUN [jIM 101ISI] 91 1BU) Seale ojewiluesfoid

MBU 818y} aly ¢.S|eAs] ainjipuadxe Bujobuo ejepueid ASU] |jIm Uonw moy
pue suoebijqo [enjoeliuod s 10Usi] eyl aie 1BUAN ~ARiRejoa sunypuadxs —
£, SuUoiloe
[Blapa4 10 9]elg 0] anp YSU e $80Inos anuansl Aue sly ¢ $80In0s ShuaAal
S JOLISI(] @Yl 4B PeoIg MO ¢ SUOIHPUOI DILLOUODS 8SISAPE JO 898}
By} Ul aseq Xe} S.101sSI(] 8Y) SI 9|dels MOH AMlIge]S 82408 dNUDADY —

Jene| wybu, peidecoe Ajjesioniun ou si @18} — SoUBISWNDIIO oylvads
umo s Aousbe ue Uo paseq passasse ag pinoys ssuejeq punj jo Aoenbspe ay] «

yiomeuweid Aajjod e bujdojersg
S|OADT] DAIDSDY

e



DOURGE. M BTBRI N

1/28/2018 Appropriate Lavel of Unresiricted Fund Balance in the General Fund | Government Finance Officers Association GFO A

loin GFOA Slaff Dirscloy Contool Us B Sioie

Search s
Foeinetn and Sery {oudes

Home / Products and Semvices / Resources / Best Practices/Advisories / Appropriate Level of Unrestricted Fund Salance in the General Furid

Resources

Aporopilate Level of Unrestricted Fund Balance in the General Fund
Best Practloes/Advisories

Type: Best Practiee

Public Pollcy Statements Appraved by GFOA's Executive Board: September 2015
Background:
EBooks In the centext of financial raparting, the term fund balance Is used to describe the net pasition of govemmental funds
sulilications calcutated in accordance with generally sscepled accounting principles (GAAP), Budgst professicnals cammoniy use this
saime tenn to desaribe the net position of goveimimental funds calculatad on a doverciment's budgetary basis,” While in
Other Products bioth cases fund biafanca s intended 1o serve as a measure of the financlal resaurces avallable in o govemmental fund: it
Sovernment Finance Review i assential that differences hetween GAAP fund bafance and budgetary fund bafance be Tully appresiated.
Research Reports 1. GAAP financlal stalements report up to fve separate categories of fund balence based an the type and sourse of
B Ch e sonstraints placed on how re?uun:es can be spent {presented in descending order from most constraining to lsast
sonstainingl: nenspendable fund balance, restricted fund bafaice, committed fund balance, assigned fund balence, and
faderal Bevemment Relations unassigned fund balance.” The total of the amounts In these last thrse categories fwhere the only constraint on
‘ spending, if any, Is imposed by the goverment ilself) is termed unsestricted fund bafonca. In conlrast, budgetary funa
Canadian Fnance balance, while i is subject ta the same consteaitits on spending as GAAP fund balance, ypically represents simply the
News and Announcements 1otal amount accumuiated from pricr years at a paint in time,

Lo

Thie calculation of GAAP fund balance and budgezary fund belance sometimes is camplicaied by the use of sub-funds

within the ganeral fund. In such cases, GAP fund balance includes amounts from all of the subfunds, whereas

buddstary fund balanse typloally doss not.

Qustom Resaarch 3. Gften the timing of the recamniton of revenues and expenditures is oifferent for purposes of GAAP finanial feperting
and butlgeling, For example. encumbrances arlsing from purchase oiclers oflen are reccgnized as expenditures for

budgetary purpeses, but never for the preparation of GAAP financial statements,

Consulting
consuiting Servlcas

Training
Search for Tralning

- b The effect of these and other differerices on the amounts repariad as GAAR fund balance and budgetary fund balance in
SEE Buice the general fund should be clarified, undsrstaod, and docunsented.

Guide for Instructors . 38 S

Itis sssenlial that governments maintain adequate levels of fund balsnce te mitigale cusrsnt and fulwe risks (e.g.,

Advancad Goverment Finance revenue shertialls and unanticipated expendliures) and to ansure stablzs tax rates, In most cases, discussions of fund

institute afance will properly fosus on a government's general fund, Nonglhelass, financial rescurces avsilable In other funds
I . should also be considered In assessing the adaquacy of unrestricted fund balance In the general fund,

Gertification Program {CPFO;

Teatning Pollcias Recommandation:

GFOA recommunds that governiments astablish a formst policy on the level of uprestricted fund balance that sheuld be
mairtalned in the general fund for GAAP and budgetary purpesss. . Such 2 guideline should be set hy the appropriate
policy body and articulate a framework and process for how the government would increase or decraase the lovel of
uprestricted fund halance over 2 specific time pariad.  In particular, goveranents shoula provide broad guidance in the
pelicy for how resourcas will be directed to replenish fund balance should the balance fali bolow the level prescribed,

Appropriate Level The adequacy of unestrcted fund balance in the general fund sheuld take Into sccount each
government’s own unlgue clicumstances, For example, governiments that may be vulnarable to natural disasters, more
dependent on a volatile revenug source, or potentlally subject Lo cuts in state ald and/ or faderal grants may need to
waintain a higher love! in the unrestdcted Tund balencs, Arliculating these risks in a Tund balance polisy makes il casier
to explain to stakeholders the rationale for a seemingly higher than normal level of fund balance that protects taypayers
and employees from unexpected changdes in financiai condition, Neveriheless, GFOAresomimends, at a minimum, that
generalpurpose doverrments, regardlass of slze, malntain enrestricted hudgetary fund balance in thair ganeral fund of no

’%\ 1e58 than two manths of regular general fund operating revenues or reguiar génaral fund operating sxpendilures. The

1 ,Z choice of ravenuss ar expendilures as a basis of comparison may be dictatad by what is more predictable in a

government's particular ciroumstances,  Furthermare, a govemnment's particular situation often may require a laval of
unrestricted fund balance in the general fund significantly in excess of this recornmended minimum level. In any case,
such mzasures should be apalisd within the contest of longtenn forssasting, thereby avolding the risk of placing too much
emphasfs upon e level of unrestricted fund helancs in the genaral fund at any one time, In esteblishing a policy
govaming the level of unreslyicted Yund balance In the general fund, & goverrmeant should consiler 5 variety of factors,
neiuding:

hitp/iwraw gfoa.arglapprepriate-level-unrestrigted-fund-belance-genoral-fund 173




28/2016

hlip:fhwww gfos.oralappropriate-level-unresiricted-fund-bhalance-general-fund

Appropriate Level of Unrestricted Fund Balance In the General Fund | Govarnment Finance Officers Assaciation

1. Tne predictability of its revenues and the volatility of its expanditures (i.e., higher levels of unrestricted fund balance
may he neaded il significant revenue scurmes are subject to unprediciable Nucluations ar If operating expendiluras are
highly volatila};

. lts perceived expasure To significant one-tine outlays (e.g., disasters, immediate ¢apilal needs, state budget auis);

. The potential drain upon genoral fund reseurces from other funds, as well as. the avallubility of resources In ather
funds;

- The potential inpact an the antly's bend ralings and the sorresponding wcreased cost of berrowed Tunds;

. Commitiments and asslgj\mama {r.e.. governmants may wish to mamlain higher levels of unresiricied fund balance o
compansata for any portion of unvesticted fund balance already committed or assiEned by the goverminent for a
specific purpose). Governments may desm it approprizie to exclude from corsideration resources thal have baen

commitied or assigned 1o some other purpose and facis on unossigned fund balance. rathar than on unresicled funil
balance,

Use and Replenishment.

he fund balance palicy should define conditions warranting its use, and ifa fund balance falis Dalow the govemment's
naticy level, a solld olan to replenish it In that context, the fund halance poficy should:

1. Define the time pariod within which and contingencies for which fund balances will be used:
. Describe how the government's expenditure angd/or revenue levels will b adjusied to malch any new economic
realities that are hehind the use of fund haiance 25 a financing hridgs:

- Deseribe the tine period over which the compenents of fund balance will be replenished and the means by whieh ey
wilt be: replenished.

Generally, goveroments should seak o replenish their fund halances within one to three yaars of use, Spacifically, factois
influencing the replenistiment time horizon include:

1. The budgetary rasons behind the fund balance targsts;
Recovering from an extreme event;

. Political continuity;

Financial planning time horizons;

. Langterm forovasts and economic conditians;

External financing expectalions.

e A R

Revenue sources that would typically be looked 1o for replenishiment of a fund balsnce include NoNrecurring revenuss,
budget surpiuses, and excess resourses in other funds (if legally permissible and there is a defensible ratignale). Yoar-
end surpluses are an appropriate source for replenishing fund balance.

Unresivisted Fund Balance Abave Formai Policy Requirement. In some coses, governmeants can find themseives iy a
pesition with an amount of unrestricted fund balance in the general fund over their farmal policy reserve requirament even
arter taking into aceount potential financial i:sks in the foresseable future, Amounts over the founal paticy mey reflact a
strugtural trand, in whizh tose govemments shouid eonsider 3 policy 28 to how this would e addressed. Additionally, an
gducation ur cammunication strategy. or al a minimum, explanation of jarde changes in fund balance is encouraged, in ail
sases, use of thase funds should be prohibited as a funding source for ongoing recurring expenditures.

Committee: Accotnting, Auditing. &nd Fihancial Reporting
Govermnental Budgeting and Fiscal Policy
Notes:

L. For Lthe sake of starity, this recommended piactice uses the terms GAAP iund halance and budgstary fund balancs tu

distinguish thess two different uses of the same term.

b

. These categories are set forth n Govemmental Aecounting Standards Board {GASE) Statement o 54. Fund Balanes
Reparting anid Governmental Fund Type Dafinitions.

Beometimes restricted fund balancs includss rasources availasia to fiuance items that typically would require the use or
unresiriciad fund balance {e.g., a contingency reseivel. In that cass, such amownts shauld be Inclusdad as pant of
unvestricted fund balance *or purposes of analysis,

w

4. Sse Recommentled Practice 4.1 of the Mational Advisoiy Councli ah State and Local Budgating goverrinents on the
reed to "maintain a prudent level of financlal resources o protect against raducing servivs levels ar ralsing taxas and
fess hecause of lemporary revenue shorifais or unpradicied one-time expenditures” {(Recommendead Practicz 4.,1),

I practice, & level of unrestricted furd halarcs significanlly lower than the recornmended minlmum may be appropriate
for states and America’s lafgest governments {2.g., citles, counthes, and school disulcts) because they often ae p a
belter position 1o predict cantingencies {for the same reason that an insurance company can mare readily predict the
number of acenlents for a pool of 500,00C drivers than for a pool of fifly), and betause their revenues and
expenditures oftan are more diversiiied and thus potentially less subject 1 volatility,

6. in either gase, unusual items thal would distort trends {e.g., one-time revenues and expenditures) shauld bs excludes,

o

whereas reculTing ransfers should be ncluded, Once he decision has been made 1o compare unrestricted fund

haiance to either ravienues and/or eipenditures. that decison should be foliowed consislemtiy from neriod to narind.
Download Best Practice



CTOURE [ALTERIK

. Unassigned fund balance is typically the primary subject of _

areserve policy. However, committed and assigned fund
balance may also be thought of as part of a reserve policy
as the goveming board or management, respectively, has
some control over the balances. Conversely, restricted
fund balances or nongpendable fund balances are
fundamenially constrained, making it unnecessary to
place pararmeters on them through reserve policy in order
to achieve prudent savings and expenditures of public
resources.

It is recommended that every district establish policies
regarding minimun fund balance and spending priorities
in order 1o communicate to users the importance of a
reserve for econormic uncertainties, why it consisis of

amounts that are unassigned and that it is not available for
spending.

Districts’ policies should specify the order in which fund
balances are spent when mors than one amount is
available for a specific purpose. Wherza such policies do not
exist, GASB 54 prescribes that the default order in which
these amounts should be spent is commitied, assigned,
and then unassigned. :

GASB 54

According o the Governmenial Accounting Standards
Board, statement No. 54 was issued after, “...research
revealed that the existing standards guiding fund
halance reporting were being interpreted inconsisiently
by diffarant governments. Consequently, the fund
halance information reported by many governments
also was inconsistent. [t also became clear that the
understandability of fund balance information was
affectsd and that financial statement users were unable
to readily interpret reporied fund balance information.”

GASB fact sheet about Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions

Sample Policy
Language

The “X" district
maintains a minimum
unassigned fund
balance of notlass
than “X" percent of
budgeted general fund
expenditures and other
financing uses as a
reserve for economic
unceriainties. The
distriet believes a
reserve of this level

is prudent to maintain
a high bond rating

and to protect the
district from the effecis
of fluciuations in
property tax revenues
o which speeial
districts are vulnerable.
Because amounis in

the nonspendable,
restricied, commitied

and assigned caiagories
are subject to varying
constraints on their

use, the reserve for
economic uncerainties
consists of balances
that arg otherwise
unassigned.




